ENTRY NO. 01184952

BHI BHICL FINCE IN THE LEAD SHAND HELDENG LANDING LANDING HELD IN HELDENG HELDENG HELDENG HELDENG.

03/09/2022 03:58:28 PM B: 2728 P: 01 Bylaws PAGE 1/18 RHONDA FRANCIS, SUMMIT COUNTY RECORDER FEE 98.00 BY WOHALI PARTNERS LLC

BYLAWS OF

WOHALI MASTER OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

These BYLAWS OF WOHALI MASTER OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., are effective upon recording in the Summit County Recorder's Office pursuant to the Utah Community Ownership Act (as amended, the "Community Association Act") and the Utah Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act (as amended, the "Nonprofit Act" and together with the Community Association Act, the "Acts").

RECITALS

- A. Wohali Master Owners Association, Inc. (the "Master Association") is organized for all lawful purposes for which a nonprofit corporation may be organized under the Nonprofit Act, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Master Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and Easements for Wohali (the "Declaration") and the Articles of Incorporation.
- B. These Bylaws are adopted to complement the Declaration, to further define the rights of the Master Association and the Owners, to provide for the ability to effectively govern and operate the Master Association and the Project known as "Wohali Resort," and to further the Master Association's efforts to provide a quality living environment.

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

1.1 Except as otherwise provided herein or as may be required by the context, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meaning and effect as used and defined in the Declaration.

ARTICLE II APPLICATION

2.1 All present and future Owners, Mortgagees, and Residents who may use the facilities of the Project in any manner are subject to these Bylaws, the Declaration, and Wohali Resort Rules (the "Rules"). The mere acquisition or rental of any of the Lots, Units, or Parcels, or the mere act of occupancy or use of any said Lots, Units, Parcels, or the Common Areas will signify that these Bylaws, the Declaration, and the Rules are accepted, ratified, and will be complied with by said persons. Owners, Mortgagees and Residents are responsible that any of their invitees and guests who may use the facilities of the Project in any matter comply to these Bylaws, the Declaration, and the Rules.

ARTICLE III OWNERS

Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Owners shall be held each year on a day and time stated in, or fixed in accordance with, a resolution of the Board of Directors. The purposes of the annual meeting may include the election of Board Members, the distribution of financial reports and budget, a review of any revisions to the Rules, distributing the most recent reserve study, and to transact such other business as may come before the meeting. If the election

of Board Members cannot be held during the annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board shall cause the election to be held either at a special meeting of the Owners to be convened as soon thereafter as may be convenient or at the next annual meeting. The Board may from time to time by resolution change the month, date, and time for the annual meeting. Annual meetings shall not be required during the Declarant Control Period, but the Declarant may hold annual meetings at its discretion.

- 3.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Owners may be called by a majority of the Board, the President, or upon the written request of Owners holding not less than forty percent (40%) of the voting interests of the Master Association. Any written request for a special meeting presented by the Owners shall be delivered to the President and shall include the original signature of each Owner affirmatively supporting such request along with a complete statement of the purpose of the meeting on each page containing signatures. The President shall then call, provide notice of, and conduct a special meeting within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the Owners' request. During the Declarant Control Period, special meetings may only be called by the Declarant.
- 3.3 <u>Place of Meetings</u>. The Board may designate any place in Summit County, Utah that is reasonably convenient for the Owners as the place of meeting for any annual or special meeting.
- 3.4 Notice of Meetings. The Board shall cause written or printed notice of the date, time, location and a description of any matter or matters that must be approved by the Owners or for which the Owners' approval is sought under Sections 825, 910, 1003, 1010, 1002, 1202 and 1402 of the Nonprofit Act (and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes) for all Owner meetings. Such written or printed notice shall be delivered to each Owner of record entitled to vote at such meeting not more than sixty (60) days', nor less than ten (10) days', prior to the meeting. Such notice may be sent via email, text, hand-delivery, or regular mail. If sent by email or text, such notice shall be deemed delivered and effective on the date transmitted to the Owner's email address or telephone number registered with the Master Association. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered and effective on the date deposited in the U.S. mail if addressed to the Owner's address registered with the Master Association. Each Owner shall register with the Master Association such Owner's current email address, phone number, and mailing address for purposes of notice hereunder. Such registered email, phone number, and mailing address may be changed from time to time by notice in writing to the Master Association. If no address is registered with the Master Association, the address of record with Summit County shall be deemed to be the Owner's registered address and notice to such address may be made by first-class mail. An Owner may opt out of receiving notices from the Master Association via email or text by giving written notice to the Board stating that the Owner will not accept notices by way of email or text.
- 3.5 Qualified Voters. An Owner shall be deemed to be in "good standing" and "entitled to vote" at any meeting if such Owner has fully paid such Owner's Assessment account (together with any interest and/or late fees) at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the commencement of the meeting and is not in violation of any provision of the Governing Documents (each such Owner, a "Qualified Voter").
- 3.6 Record Date for Notice Purposes. The Board may designate a record date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) days and not less than ten (10) days prior to the meeting, for the purpose of determining Owners entitled to notice of any meeting of the Owners. If no record date

is designated, the last date on which a notice of the meeting is mailed or delivered shall be deemed to be the record date for determining Owners entitled to notice. The persons or entities appearing in the records of the Master Association on such record date as the Owners of record of Lots, Units, or Parcels in the Project shall be deemed to be the Owners of record entitled to notice of the Owner meeting.

- 3.7 **Quorum.** Those Owners present in person or by proxy at any duly called meeting that is called and held in compliance with the requirements of this Article III, shall constitute a quorum for the adoption of decisions.
- 3.8 **Proxies.** At each Owner meeting, each Owner entitled to vote shall be entitled to vote in person or by proxy; provided, however, that the right to vote by proxy shall exist only where the instrument authorizing such proxy to act shall have been signed by the Owner or by the Owner's attorney-in-fact. A proxy may be written on paper or received via email, text, or any other electronic or physical means. A signature as required herein shall mean any indication that the document is from and consented to by the person who is purported to have sent it. If a Lot, Unit, or Parcel is jointly owned, the instrument authorizing a proxy to act may be executed by any one (1) Owner of such Lot, Unit, or Parcel or the Owner's attorney-in-fact when duly authorized in writing. A proxy given by or on behalf of an Owner to any person who represents the Owner at meetings of the Master Association shall be in writing, dated, and signed by such Owner or such Owner's attorney-in-fact. Such instrument may allow the proxy to vote on any issue arising at any particular meeting(s), or may set forth the specific matters or issues upon which the proxy is authorized to act. Proxies shall be filed with the Secretary (or with such other officer or person who may be acting as Secretary of the meeting) before the meeting is called to order. The Secretary shall record all proxies in the meeting minutes.
- 3.9 <u>Votes</u>. With respect to each matter submitted to an Owner vote, each Owner entitled to vote at the meeting shall have the right to cast, in person or by proxy, the number of votes appertaining to the Lot, Unit, or Parcel of such Owner, in accordance with the Declaration. The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the Owners present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum was initially present shall be necessary for the adoption of any matter voted on by Owners, unless a greater proportion is required by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or the Declaration. When a Lot, Unit, or Parcel is jointly owned, any Owner may exercise the vote for such Lot, Unit, or Parcel on behalf of all co-Owners of the Lot, Unit, or Parcel. In the event of two (2) conflicting votes by co-Owners of a Lot, Unit, or Parcel, no vote shall be counted for that Lot, Unit, or Parcel. In no event shall fractional or cumulative votes be exercised with respect to any Lot, Unit, or Parcel. Only those Owners who are Qualified Voters shall be entitled to vote, whether in person or by proxy.
- 3.10 <u>Waiver of Irregularities</u>. All inaccuracies and irregularities in calls or notices of meetings and in the manner of voting, in the form of proxies and the method of ascertaining Owners present, and in the decision and votes of the Board or of the Owners shall be deemed waived by those Owners in attendance if no objection is made at the meeting. For those Owners who are not in attendance at the meeting, the right to challenge inaccuracies and irregularities in calls, notices, voting, and decisions shall be waived if no objection is made within thirty (30) days of the date of the meeting.
- 3.11 Action Taken Without a Meeting. Owners have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of

Owners in accordance with the requirements of Sections 707 and 709 of the Nonprofit Act, and any other applicable section of the Acts. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at an Owner meeting. Ballots or written consents may be obtained via any electronic or physical means including but not limited to email, text, or paper document.

3.12 <u>Minutes of Meetings</u>. The Secretary, or the Manager, shall take minutes of all meetings of the Owners. The minutes shall include, at a minimum, the following: (1) the identification of the Persons present in person and by proxy, (2) the meeting date, (3) the identification of any issue that is voted on or decided in the meeting, (4) the number of votes cast for and against any issue decided upon, and (5) the exact wording of any resolution passed at the meeting. The failure to take appropriate minutes or otherwise comply with this section does not invalidate any action taken at a meeting. Draft meeting minutes for each annual meeting of the Owners shall be made available to all Owners within sixty (60) days of the annual meeting.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 4.1 <u>Powers</u>. The Project and the business and affairs of the Master Association shall be governed and managed by the Board of Directors. The Board may exercise business judgment and all of the powers of the Master Association, whether derived from the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Articles, or the Acts, except such powers that the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Articles, and the Acts vest solely in the Owners.
- 4.2 <u>Number and Qualifications</u>. The Board of Directors shall be composed of three (3) Persons. After the Declarant Control Period, the Board Members must be at least eighteen (18) years old and must be an Owner or the spouse of an Owner of a Lot, Unit, or Parcel in the Project. If an Owner is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or trust, an officer, partner, member, manager, agent, trustee, or beneficiary of such Owner may be a Board Member. If a Board Member ceases to meet any required qualifications during the Board Member's term, such person's membership on the Board shall automatically terminate.
- 4.3 Election. During the Declarant Control Period, Board Members shall be appointed solely by Declarant. Following the Declarant Control Period, the election of Board Members shall be made by the Owners and must at all times have at least one (1) Board Member be an Owner of a Resort Unit and at least one (1) Board Member shall be an Owner of a Lot. At such election, the Owners or their proxies may cast, with respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The Master Association may accept written ballots for Board Member election voting purposes from those Members unable to attend a meeting in which an election is held. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. The election of Board Members may be conducted through open voting or by secret ballot upon the request of any Owner. Cumulative voting is not permitted.
- 4.4 <u>Term of Office</u>. During the Declarant Control Period, Board Member terms shall be determined exclusively by Declarant. Following the Declarant Control Period, the Owners shall elect Board Members for two (2) year terms. However, at the first election following the Declarant Control Period, the majority of Board Members receiving the highest votes will hold two (2) year terms and the remaining will hold a one (1) year term to establish staggered terms. (i.e. two (2) Board Members will serve a two (2) year term and one (1) Board Member will serve a one (1) year

term) The terms shall be staggered and overlap so that elections for Board Member positions are held each year at the annual meeting. Board Members may serve consecutive terms if elected.

- 4.5 <u>Regular Meetings</u>. The Board shall hold meetings at least annually or more often at the discretion of the Board. During the Declarant Control Period, Board Meetings shall be held at the discretion of the Declarant so long as at least one (1) Board Meeting is held each year and a Board Meeting is held each time the Master Association increases a fee or raises an Assessment.
- 4.6 <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or a majority of Board Members on at least two (2) business days' prior notice to each Board Member.
- 4.7 <u>Meeting Notice</u>. Notice shall be given to Owners who have requested notice personally, and Board Members, by email, or by telephone, including text message at least two (2) business days' in advance of the meeting; provided that such notice shall not be required if (a) notice of the Board meeting was included in a Board meeting schedule that was previously provided to the Owners, or (b) the Board meeting is to address an emergency. By unanimous consent of the Board, Board meetings may be held without call or notice to the Board Members, but notice shall always be provided, except as contemplated in clauses (a) and (b) above, to those Owners who have requested notice of Board meetings.
- 4.8 **Quorum and Manner of Action**. A majority of Board Members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The act of a majority of the Board Members present at any meeting at which a quorum is present, and for which proper notice was provided, shall be the act of the Board. Board Members shall act only as the Board of Directors, and individual Board Members shall have no powers as such.
- 4.9 Owner Attendance. Any Owner may request notice of Board meetings by requesting such notice from a Board Member and providing a valid email address at which the Owner will receive notice. Owners who have requested notice of Board meetings shall be given notice along with the Board Members and shall be provided any call-in number or other means of attendance by electronic communication that is provided to Board Members. If Owners attend a Board meeting, the Board shall select a specific period of time during the meeting to allow Owner comments and limit Owner comments to such time period. The Board in its sole discretion may set a reasonable length of time that each Owner may speak.
- 4.10 Open Meetings. Except as provided in (a) through (f) below, following the Declarant Control Period, Board meetings shall be open to Owners. The Board may hold a closed executive session during a meeting of the Board if the purpose of the closed executive session is to:
 - (a) Consult with legal counsel to obtain legal advice and discuss legal matters;
 - (b) Discuss existing or potential litigation, mediation, arbitration, or an administrative proceeding;
 - (c) Discuss a labor or personnel matter;
 - (d) Discuss a matter relating to contract negotiations, including the review of a bid or proposal;
 - (e) Discuss a matter involving a Person, if the Board determines that public knowledge of the matter would violate the Person's privacy; or
 - (f) Discuss a delinquent assessment.

During the Declarant Control Period, Board meetings may be closed to Owners; provided, however, that the Board, in its sole discretion and without obligation, determines to open the meeting (or a portion thereof) to the Owners; provided, further, that during the Declarant Control Period the Master Association must hold open Board meetings at least one (1) time per year, and each time the Master Association increases a fee or raises an Assessment.

- 4.11 <u>Board Meetings Generally</u>. The Board may designate any place in Summit County as the place of meeting for any regular or special Board meeting. The Board may allow attendance and participation at any Board meeting by telephone or any other electronic means that allows for Board Members to communicate orally in real time. Following the Declarant Control Period, if a Board meeting is held by telephone, the Master Association shall provide the call-in information such that Owners may call-in to access the meeting.
- 4.12 **Board Action.** Notwithstanding noncompliance with any provision within these Bylaws, Board action is binding and valid unless set aside by a court of law. A person challenging the validity of a Board action for failure to comply with these Bylaws may not bring the challenge more than sixty (60) days after the Board has taken the action in dispute.
- 4.13 <u>Compensation</u>. No Board Member shall receive compensation for any services that such person may render to the Master Association as a Board Member; *provided*, *however*, that a Board Member may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of such duties as a Board Member to the extent such expenses are approved by a majority of the other Board Members. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Board Member from serving the Project in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore, so long as approved in advance by a majority of disinterested Board Members.
- 4.14 Resignation and Removal. A Board Member may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to another Board Member. Unless otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. Any Board Member who is appointed by the Declarant may only be removed by the Declarant. The Declarant may remove a Board Member it appoints at any time and for any reason, in its sole discretion. A Board Member elected by the Owners after the Declarant Control Period may be removed at any time, with or without cause, at a special meeting of the Owners duly called for such purpose upon the affirmative vote of more than fifty percent (50%) of the entire voting interests of the Master Association. At such a meeting, the Owners shall vote for a new Board Member to fill the remaining term of the removed Board Member. Board Members may also be removed by a majority vote of the other active Board Members upon the occurrence of any of the following: (a) failure to attend three (3) consecutive Board meetings; (b) failure to remain current on Assessments, or (c) a violation of the Governing Documents. If removal occurs based on the preceding sentence, then the remaining Board Members may appoint a replacement to serve the remaining term of the removed Board Member.
- 4.15 <u>Vacancies</u>. If vacancies occur in the Board during the Declarant Control Period, the Declarant shall appoint a Board Member to fill the vacancy. Following the Declarant Control Period, if vacancies occur in the Board for any reason (including death, resignation, or disqualification) except removal by the Owners, the Board Members then in office shall continue to act, and such vacancies shall be filled by a majority vote of the Board Members then in office, though less than a quorum. A vacancy in the Board occurring by reason of removal of a Board Member by the Owners may be filled by election of the Owners at the meeting at which such Board Member is removed. Any Board Member elected or appointed hereunder to fill a vacancy shall

serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor. Except by reason of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal, Board Members shall continue to serve until their successors are elected.

- 4.16 <u>Action Without a Meeting</u>. Board Members have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting subject to the requirements of Section 813 of the Nonprofit Act and any other applicable sections of the Acts. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Board.
- 4.17 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Before or at any meeting of the Board, any Board Member or Owner may waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Attendance by a Board Member or Owner at any meeting thereof shall be a waiver of notice by that Board Member or Owner of the time, place, and purpose thereof.
- 4.18 Adjournment. The Board may adjourn any meeting from day to day for such other time as may be prudent or necessary, provided that no meeting may be adjourned for longer than thirty (30) days.
- 4.19 <u>Meeting</u>. A Board meeting does not include a gathering of Board Members at which the Board does not conduct and vote on Master Association business.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

- 5.1 Officers. The officers of the Master Association shall be a President, Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers as may be appointed by the Board. Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, officers shall not be required during the Declarant Control Period.
- 5.2 Election, Tenure, and Qualifications. Officers shall be elected by the Board at the first Board meeting following each annual meeting of the Owners. Each officer shall hold such office until the next ensuing meeting of the Board following the annual meeting of the Owners and until a successor has been elected and qualified, or until such officer's death, resignation, disqualification, or removal in the manner provided in these Bylaws, whichever first occurs. Any person may hold any two (2) or more of such offices, except that the President may not also be the Secretary. No person holding two (2) or more offices shall act in or execute any instrument in the capacity of more than one (1) office.
- 5.3 <u>Subordinate Officers</u>. The Board may appoint such other officers or agents as it may deem advisable, each of whom shall have such title, hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may from time to time determine.
- 5.4 <u>Resignation and Removal</u>. Officers may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to any Board Member or to any managing agent of the Master Association. Unless otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. Any officer may be removed and replaced upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board Members at any time, with or without cause.
- 5.5 <u>Vacancies</u>. If a vacancy occurs in any office by reason of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause, or if a new office shall be created, such vacancies or newly created offices may be filled by majority vote of the Board at any regular or special Board meeting.

- The President shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors and at meetings of the Owners. At the meetings, the President shall have all authority typically granted to the person presiding over the meeting including but not limited to: (a) the right to control the order of the meeting, (b) the right to arrange for the removal of any disruptive Owner or person, and (c) the right to impose and enforce reasonable rules and procedures related to the meeting, such as those found in "Robert's Rules of Order" or "The Modern Rules of Order." The President shall sign on behalf of the Master Association all conveyances, mortgages, documents, and contracts, and shall do and perform all other acts and things as required by the Board. Additionally, the President is authorized to prepare, execute, certify, and record, on behalf of the Master Association, any amendments to the Declaration that are adopted and approved pursuant to the terms and conditions thereof.
- 5.7 <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the Master Association, including the minutes of Board and Owner meetings, and shall maintain such books and records as these Bylaws, the Declaration, Rules, any resolution the Board, or Section 1601 of the Nonprofit Act may require. The Secretary shall also act in the place of the President in the event of the President's absence or inability or refusal to act. The duties of the Secretary may be delegated to the Manager by the Board. Additionally, the Secretary, at the direction of the President, is authorized to prepare, execute, certify, and record, on behalf of the Master Association, any amendments to the Declaration that are adopted and approved pursuant to the terms and conditions thereof.
- 5.8 <u>Treasurer</u>. The Treasurer shall have the custody and control of the funds and financial accounts of the Master Association, subject to the action of the Board, and when requested by the President, shall report the state of the finances of the Master Association at each meeting of the Owners and at any meeting of the Board. The Treasurer shall perform such other duties as required by the Board. The duties of the Treasurer may be delegated to the Manager by the Board.
- 5.9 <u>Compensation</u>. No officer shall receive compensation for any services rendered to the Master Association as an officer; *provided*, *however*, that an officer may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of such duties as an officer to the extent such expenses are approved by the Board.

ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES

- 6.1 <u>Designation of Committees</u>. The Board may designate committees or boards as it deems appropriate in carrying out its duties, responsibilities, functions, and powers. At least two (2) Board Members must be appointed to serve on each such committee or board. No committee members shall receive compensation for services rendered to the Master Association as a member of a committee or board; *provided*, *however*, that a committee or board member may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of such duties as a committee or board member, to the extent that such expenses are approved by the Board. A committee or board shall not have powers, duties, or responsibilities beyond those specifically assigned by the Board in a written resolution. The Board may terminate a committee or board at any time.
- 6.2 <u>Proceeding of Committees or Boards</u>. Each committee or board may appoint its own presiding and recording officers and may meet at such places and times and upon such notice

as such committee or board may determine. Each such committee or board shall keep a record of its proceedings and shall regularly report such records to the Board.

- 6.3 Quorum and Manner of Acting. At each committee or board meeting, the presence of members constituting at least a majority of the authorized membership of such committee or board (but in no event fewer than two (2) members) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such committee or board. The committee or board members shall act only as a committee or board, and the individual members thereof shall have no powers as such. A committee or board may only exercise the authority granted to it by the Board.
- 6.4 <u>Resignation and Removal</u>. A committee or board member may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to a Board Member, or the presiding officer of such committee or board. Unless otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. The Board may at any time, with or without cause, remove any committee or board member.
- 6.5 <u>Vacancies</u>. If any vacancy occurs in a committee or board due to disqualification, death, resignation, removal, or otherwise, the remaining members shall, until the filling of such vacancy by the Board, constitute the then total authorized membership of the committee or board and, provided that two (2) or more members are remaining, may continue to act. Such vacancy may be filled at any meeting of the Board.

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION

- 7.1 Indemnification. No Board Member, officer, or committee or board member shall be personally liable for any obligations of the Master Association or for any duties or obligations arising out of any acts or conduct said Board Member, officer, or committee or board member performed for or on behalf of the Master Association. The Master Association shall and does hereby indemnify and hold harmless each person who shall serve at any time as a Board Member, officer, or committee or board member of the Master Association, as well as such person's heirs and administrators, from and against any and all claims, judgments and liabilities to which such persons shall become subject, by reason of that person having heretofore or hereafter been a Board Member, officer, or committee or board member of the Master Association or by reason of any action alleged to have been heretofore or hereafter taken or omitted to have been taken by him as such Board Member, officer, or committee or board member and shall reimburse any such person for all legal and other expenses reasonably incurred in connection with any such claim or liability; provided that no such person shall be indemnified against or be reimbursed for or be defended against any expense or liability incurred in connection with any claim or action arising out of such person's willful or intentional misconduct. The rights accruing to any person under the foregoing provisions of this Section 7.1 shall not exclude any other right to which such person may lawfully be entitled, nor shall anything herein contained restrict the right of the Master Association to indemnify or reimburse such person in any proper case, even though not specifically provided for herein or otherwise permitted. The Master Association, its Board Members, officers, committee or board members, employees, and agents shall be fully protected in taking any action, making any payment, or in refusing to do so in reliance upon the advice of counsel.
- 7.2 Other Indemnification. The indemnification provided herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other right to indemnification to which any person seeking indemnification may

be entitled under the Acts or under any agreement, vote of disinterested Board Members or otherwise, both as to action taken in any official capacity and as to action taken in any other capacity while holding such office. It is the intent that all Board Members, officers, and committee or board members be and hereby are indemnified to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State of Utah and these Bylaws. The indemnification herein provided shall continue as to any person who has ceased to be a Board Member, officer, committee or board member, or employee and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of any such person.

- 7.3 Insurance. The Board, in its discretion, may direct that the Master Association purchase and maintain directors and officers insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Board Member, officer, committee or board member, Manager or employee of the Master Association or is or was serving at the request of the Master Association as a Board Member, officer, committee or board member, Manager, employee, or agent of another association, sub-association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against, and incurred by, such person in any such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the Master Association would have the power to indemnify such person against liability under the provisions of this Article VII.
- 7.4 <u>Settlement by Master Association</u>. The right of any person to be indemnified shall be subject always to the right of the Master Association through the Board, in lieu of such indemnity, to settle any such claim, action, suit or proceeding at the expense of the Master Association by the payment of the amount of such settlement and the costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith.

ARTICLE VIII RULES AND REGULATIONS

Rules. The Board shall have the authority to adopt Rules as it deems necessary for the maintenance, operation, management, and control of the Project. The Board may from time to time, by resolution, alter, amend, and repeal such Rules and use their commercially reasonable efforts to see that they are strictly observed by all Owners and Residents. Owners are responsible to ensure that their occupants, invitees, and guests strictly observe the Rules then in effect as well as the covenants and restrictions of the Declaration and shall be jointly and severally liable for their violations and resulting fines. Copies of all Rules adopted by the Board shall be sent to all Owners at least ten (10) days prior to the effective date thereof.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS

9.1 <u>Amendments by Declarant</u>. So long as the Declarant owns one or more Lots, Units, or Parcels in the Project, the Declarant acting alone may amend the Bylaws for any reason, without Owner approval. Declarant's unilateral amendment right as designated herein may continue past the expiration of the Declarant Control Period. No other amendment shall be valid or enforceable during the period Declarant owns at least one (1) Lot, Unit, or Parcel unless the Declarant has given written consent to such amendment. Any amendment during the period Declarant owns at least one (1) Lot, Unit, or Parcel shall be executed by Declarant on behalf of the Master Association and shall become effective upon recordation in the office of the Summit County Recorder.

Amendments by the Master Association. After the Declarant has sold all of the Lots, Units, or Parcels to third parties, the Bylaws may be amended by the Owners upon the affirmative vote of at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting interest of the Master Association. Any amendment(s) shall be effective upon recordation in the office of the Summit County Recorder. In such instrument the President shall execute the amendment and certify that the vote required by this Section 9.2 has occurred. If a Lot, Unit, or Parcel is owned by more than one Owner, the vote of any one Owner shall be sufficient to constitute approval for that Lot, Unit, or Parcel under this Section 9.2. If a Lot, Unit, or Parcel is owned by an entity or trust, the vote of any one officer, trustee, or agent of the entity shall be sufficient to constitute approval for that Lot, Unit, or Parcel under this Section 9.2. No acknowledgment of any Owner signature shall be required. No amendment shall restrict, limit, or impair any Declarant rights without the express written consent of the Declarant.

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 10.1 <u>Waiver</u>. No restriction, condition, obligation, or provision contained in these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of a failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- 10.2 <u>Invalidity: Number: Captions</u>. The invalidity of any part of these Bylaws shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity, enforceability, or effect of the balance of these Bylaws. As used in these Bylaws, the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular. The masculine and neuter shall each include the masculine, feminine and neuter, as the context requires. All captions are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall in no way limit any of the provisions of these Bylaws.
- 10.3 <u>Conflicts</u>. These Bylaws are intended to comply with the Declaration. In case of any irreconcilable conflict, the Declaration shall control over these Bylaws.

[Signature and Acknowledgment Pages Follow]

CONSENT TO THE BYLAWS

For good and sufficient consideration, WOHALI LAND ESTATES LLC, a Utah limited liability company, the owner of a portion of the land subjected to these Bylaws, consents to the recording of these Bylaws, as of the date listed below, and agrees to subject its land and all subsequent successors and assigns of such land to the provisions described therein.

WOHALI LAND ESTATES LLC, a Utah limited liability company

Name: John Kaiser
Its: Authorized Manager

STATE OF UTAH
)
COUNTY OF SUMMIT
)

On the Aday of March, 2022, personally appeared before me John Kaiser, who by me being duly sworn, did say that he is the Authorized Manager of WOHALI LAND ESTATES LLC, a Utah limited liability company, and that this Consent to the Bylaws is signed on behalf of said company and executed with all necessary authority.

CHRISTINE STAR HULL Notary Public State of Utah My Commission Expires on: December 30, 2025 Comm. Number: 722190 Notary Public: Old We Stan Shel

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has executed and adopted these Bylaws on behalf of the Master Association.

By:

DATED this 2 day of MARCH, 2022.

DECLARANT:

WOHALI PARTNERS LLC,

a Utah limited liability company

Name: David Boyden

Its: Authorized Manager

STATE OF UTAH) ss. COUNTY OF <u>SUMMIT</u>)

On the Aday of March, 2022, personally appeared before me David Boyden, who by me being duly sworn, did say that he is the Authorized Manager of WOHALI PARTNERS LLC, a Utah limited liability company, and that the foregoing instrument is signed on behalf of said company and executed with all necessary authority.



Notary Public: While Itan Will

EXHIBIT A

TO

MASTER DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND EASEMENTS FOR WOHALI RESORT

(Legal Description of the Property)

The real property referenced in the foregoing instrument is located in Coalville City, Summit County, Utah and is more particularly described as follows:

All Lots within Wohali Phase 1 Subdivision Plat Recorded as Entry Number 1181925 on January 21st, 2022 in the office of the County Recorder of Summit County, Utah and any other plat map(s) of additional parcels subsequently recorded, as said plat map(s) may from time to time be amended or supplemented of record.

Parcel Numbers:

WOH-1-1	WOH-1-11	WOH-1-69
WOH-1-2	WOH-1-12	WOH-1-70
WOH-1-3	WOH-1-13	WOH-1-71
WOH-1-4	WOH-1-14	WOH-1-72
WOH-1-5	WOH-1-15	WOH-1-73
WOH-1-6	WOH-1-64	
WOH-1-7	WOH-1-65	
WOH-1-8	WOH-1-66	
WOH-1 - 9	WOH-1-67	
WOH-1-10	WOH-1-68	

Boundary Description of the Wohali Phase 1 Subdivision:

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN, COALVILLE, SUMMIT COUNTY, UTAH MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT WHICH IS N89°11'21"E 2365.67 FEET ALONG THE NORTH SECTION LINE OF SECTION 18 FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH 89°11'21" EAST 60.01 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 10°28'25" EAST 134.39 FEET TO A POINT ON A 100.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 79°31'35" WEST; THENCE SOUTHERLY 23.58 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE

OF 13°30'27" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 03°43'12" EAST 23.52 FEET) TO A POINT ON A 443.00 FOOT RADIUS COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT. THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 86°57'58" WEST: THENCE SOUTHERLY 171.95 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 22°14'21" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 14°09'13" WEST 170.87 FEET) TO A POINT ON A 133.00 FOOT RADIUS COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 64°43'37" WEST; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 70.46 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30°21'13" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 40°27'00" WEST 69.64 FEET) TO A POINT ON A 87.00 FOOT RADIUS REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 34°22'24" EAST; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 28.35 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18°40'16" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 46°17'28" WEST 28.23 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 36°57'21" WEST 96.91 FEET TO A POINT ON A 15.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 58°07'52" EAST; THENCE SOUTHERLY 21.21 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 81°01'24" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 08°38'34" EAST 19.49 FEET): THENCE SOUTH 49°09'15" EAST 35.06 FEET TO A POINT ON A 100.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 40°50'45" EAST; THENCE EASTERLY 158.59 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°51'52" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 85°24'49" EAST 142.48 FEET); THENCE NORTH 39°58'53" EAST 116.77 FEET TO A POINT ON A 275.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 50°01'07" EAST; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 81.89 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17°03'41" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 48°30'44" EAST 81.59 FEET); THENCE NORTH 57°02'34" EAST 200.87 FEET TO A POINT ON A 125.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 32°57'26" EAST; THENCE EASTERLY 193.95 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 88°53'57" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 78°30'27" EAST 175.07 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 34°03'29" EAST 29.90 FEET TO A POINT ON A 125.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 55°56'31" EAST; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 85.51 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 39°11'40" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 53°39'19" EAST 83.85 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 73°15'09" EAST 93.68 FEET TO A POINT ON A 175.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT. THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 16°44'51" WEST; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 53.64 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17°33'48" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 64°28'14" EAST 53.43 FEET): THENCE SOUTH 55°41'20" EAST 26.36 FEET TO A POINT ON A 125.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 34°18'40" EAST; THENCE EASTERLY 143.66 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 65°50'53" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 88°36'47" EAST 135.88 FEET); THENCE NORTH 58°27'47" EAST 49.23 FEET TO A POINT ON A 125.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 31°32'13" EAST; THENCE EASTERLY 157.41 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 72°09'00" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 85°27'43" EAST 147.21 FEET); THENCE NORTH 40°36'47" EAST 189.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 10°37'48" EAST 189.19 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°11'21" EAST 79.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 56°22'29" EAST 169.81 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 33°37'31" WEST 193.48 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 52°52'18" EAST 156.58 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 09°56'22" EAST 480.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86°16'33" WEST 82.25 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01°41'07" WEST 263.56 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°18'53" EAST 198.14 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 09°08'58" WEST 1.261.94 FEET; THENCE NORTH 83°04'19" WEST 187.88 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°12'25" WEST 558.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77°47'35" WEST 481.29 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°12'25" WEST 332.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°51'01" WEST 380.73 FEET TO A POINT ON A 275.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 87°04'58" EAST: THENCE SOUTHERLY 25.05 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05°13'07" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 05°31'36" EAST 25.04 FEET): THENCE SOUTH 81°51'51" WEST 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58°47'03" WEST 205.16 FEET; THENCE NORTH 51°26'07" WEST 137.45 FEET; THENCE NORTH 32°37'56" WEST 218.97 FEET; THENCE NORTH 53°04'13" EAST 243.33 FEET; THENCE NORTH 30°45'49" EAST 650.95 FEET; THENCE NORTH 19°44'42" EAST 259.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°52'50" EAST 169.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 14°57'19" WEST 813.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°01'51" EAST 621.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH 07°47'43" EAST 216.90 FEET TO A POINT ON A 175.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 16°44'51" EAST; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 119.71 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 39°11'40" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 53°39'19" WEST 117.39 FEET); THENCE NORTH 34°03'29" WEST 29.90 FEET TO A POINT ON A 75.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 55°56'31" WEST; THENCE WESTERLY 116.37 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 88°53'57" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 78°30'27" WEST 105.04 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 57°02'34" WEST 200.87 FEET TO A POINT ON A 225.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 32°57'26" EAST: THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 67.00 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17°03'41" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 48°30'44" WEST 66.75 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 39°58'53" WEST 116.77 FEET TO A POINT ON A 150.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 50°01'07" WEST; THENCE WESTERLY 237.88 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°51'52" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 85°24'49" WEST 213.73 FEET); THENCE NORTH 49°09'15" WEST 35.10 FEET TO A POINT ON A 15.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 40°50'45" WEST; THENCE WESTERLY 22.20 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 84°47'03" (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 88°27'13" WEST 20.23 FEET); THENCE NORTH 43°56'49" WEST 50.01 FEET TO A POINT ON A 375.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 43°56'49" WEST; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 59.54 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09°05'51" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 41°30'16" EAST 59.48 FEET); THENCE NORTH 36°57'21" EAST 95.87 FEET TO A POINT ON A 87.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 53°02'39" WEST; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 31.85 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 20°58'33" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 26°28'04" EAST 31.67 FEET); THENCE NORTH 15°58'48" EAST 34.77 FEET TO A POINT ON A 133.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 74°01'12" EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY 23.12 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09°57'40" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 20°57'38" EAST 23.09 FEET) TO A POINT ON A 357.00

FOOT RADIUS REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 64°03'32" WEST; THENCE NORTHERLY 154.59 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24°48'39" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 13°32'09" EAST 153.39 FEET); THENCE NORTH 00°56'51" EAST 79.63 FEET TO A POINT ON A 100.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 89°03'09" WEST; THENCE NORTHERLY 4.98 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°51'03" (CHORD BEARS NORTH 00°28'41" WEST 4.98 FEET); THENCE NORTH 01°54'12" WEST 53.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 3,157,390 SQUARE FEET OR 72.48 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

CREATING 25 LOTS.

Wohali Resort's As-Surveyed Property Boundary:

PARCELS CT--289-A, CT-285-A, CT-287-A, CT-310, CT-303, CT-446-C, CT-446, CT-446-A, CT-446-B, CT-447-B AND CT-447

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 89°11'21" EAST 3743.70 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 56°22'29" EAST 406.43 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 17°05'28" EAST 369.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°07'57" EAST 780.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°44'02" WEST 123.14 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 19°38'38" WEST 291.90 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 19°38'38" WEST 1180.02 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 19°38'38" WEST 160.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 23°08'38" WEST 700.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°42'14" EAST 201.86 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°42'14" EAST 387.14 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°59'49" EAST 387.39 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 21°37'45" WEST 483.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 21°37'45" WEST 960.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°26'37" WEST 1148.59 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°17'17" WEST 2616.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 0°11'51" WEST 746.45 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°14'02" WEST 245.57 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°14'02" WEST 1732.04 FEET: THENCE NORTH 24°14'35" EAST 114.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61°22'24" WEST 4028.44 FEET; THENCE NORTH 57°24'30" WEST 5260.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 69°41'17" EAST 935.37 FEET; THENCE NORTH 43°11'17" EAST 1900.00 FEET: THENCE NORTH 28°56'17" EAST 1025.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 28°01'17" EAST 2293.08 FEET; THENCE NORTH 83°49'36" EAST 682.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°05'27" EAST 1048.23 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°52'20" EAST 5453.59 FEET; TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS: 66,460,626 SQ. FT OR 1,525.70 ACRES

PARCEL CT-441

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN AND

RUNNING THENCE SOUTH 88°36'14" EAST 1,803.94 FEET ALONG THE SECTION LINE, MORE OR LESS, TO THE USA PROPERTY: THENCE SOUTH 06°59'54" EAST 237.06 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°53'54" EAST 502.00 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 28°19'54" EAST 190.60 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 01°08'06" WEST 182.65 FEET TO PARCEL NS-440: THE NEXT (3) COURSES ARE ALONG THE EXISTING FENCE LINE COMMON TO PARCEL NS-440: THENCE NORTH 88°40'16" WEST 1.902.33 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 00°58'29" EAST 992.30 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°37'54" EAST 1,039.76 FEET TO A 3 WAY FENCE CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 15°31'34" EAST 636.72 FEET ALONG AN EXISTING LINE OF FENCE COMMON TO PARCEL NS- 437; THENCE NORTH 89°06'43" WEST 1,363.89 FEET ALONG THE PROJECTION OF AN EXISTING LINE OF FENCE TO THE WEST OUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17, SAID OUARTER CORNER BEING MARKED WITH AN ORIGINAL STONE; THENCE NORTH 00°55'18" WEST 2.670.12 FEET ALONG THE SECTION LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS 68.68 ACRES PARCEL CT-449

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 18. TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN AND RUNNING THENCE SOUTH 89°10'22" WEST 138.00 FEET ALONG THE SECTION LINE: THENCE SOUTH 08°20'22" WEST 168.00 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 03°10'22" WEST 128.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 16°55'22" WEST 788.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 13°28'41" WEST 71.32 FEET; THE NEXT (5) COURSES ARE ALONG THE ADJACENT WOHALI PARTNERS BOUNDARY AS DELINEATED BY AN EXISTING RECORD OF SURVEY: THENCE SOUTH 12°43'34" WEST 123.14 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 19°38'10" WEST 1,632.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 23°08'10" WEST 700.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°42'42" EAST 589.00 FEET: THENCE NORTH 89°59'43" EAST 1,313.27 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE SECTION LINE: THENCE NORTH 00°29'49" WEST 1,339.27 FEET ALONG SAID LINE TO THE EAST OUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 18, SAID OUARTER CORNER BEING MARKED WITH AN ORIGINAL STONE: THENCE NORTH 00°55'18" WEST 2,670.12 FEET ALONG THE SECTION LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS 69.66 ACRES